# Veri-Q PCR 316 QD-P100



# User Manual

Apr. 2020

Cat No. 9R501

# MiCo BioMed

# **User Instructions**

Common name : Gene amplification device Brand name : Veri-Q PCR 316 Model name : QD-P100

For safe use, please use the device after reading the manual thoroughly. Please furnish this document at a designated location so it can be used at all times.





MiCo BioMed Co., Ltd.

3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> Floor , 54 Changeop-ro, Sujeong-gu, Seongnam-si, Gyeonggi-do, Korea, 13449 TEL: +82-70-5227-6000 FAX: +82-70-5227-6001~2

# **Table of Contents**

1. Before you begin	5
1-1. About the manual	5
1-2. General Requirements for Installation	5
1-3. How to Obtain More Information	5
1-4. About Customer Support	5
1-5. Precautions on distribution or duplication of the manual	5
1-6. Laboratory Biosafety	5
2. Precautions when using QD-P100	6
2-1. Purpose of use	6
2-2. Principles of operation	6
2-3. General Precautions	6
3. Product Component and Specification	14
3-1. Product Composition and Characteristic	14
3.2 How to Use	20
3-3 Preparation for Experiment	27
4. How to Install and Use the Operating Program	30
4-1. Execution of Distribution CD and Installation of Operating Program	30
4-2. How to Use the Operating Program	37
4.3. PCR Chip Setting	42
4.4. Operation	48
4-5. Data Analysis	50
5. Troubleshooting	56
5.1. Error Message	56
5.2. Maintenance	57

6. Warranty Policy	58
7. Return Policy	58
8. Classification of Symbols	59
9. Disposal of Electrical & Electronic Equipment	60
10. EMC & Safety Test Results	60
11. Purchase of Reagents and Consumables	61
12. Maintenance Checklist	62

### 1. Before You Begin

#### 1.1 About the manual

This manual is prepared for researchers or related staff for using and conducting research using **Veri-Q PCR 316 - QD-P100** and for related staff who installs and maintains the product.

#### 1-2. General Requirements for Installation

If you wish to use this manual, the following is required.

- Pure DNA/RNA suitable for QD-P100 must be used,-When used in connection to a computer, there should be no problem in using Windows 7 or XP Operating System.-You must have basic knowledge in handling DNA and RNA samples for PCR.
- You must be familiar with general method of use such as saving, copying, and pasting data on the hard drive.
- \* While this equipment can be used as a stand alone without a computer, there should be no problem in using Windows7 operating system when connected to a computer.

#### 1-3. How to Obtain More Information

To obtain information related to **QD-P100**, please visit Mico Biomed website(www.micobiomed.com) or send an e-mail to salesbio@micobiomed.com.

#### 1-4. About Customer Support

Mico Biomed is using 070-5227-6000 for prompt customer support of the product and to minimize inconvenience. We are also prepared to listen to our customer's questions and comments at all times from the customer's voice(Q&A) bulletin board at Mico BioMed Co., Ltd. website(www.micobiomed. com).

#### 1-5. Precautions on distribution or duplication of the manual

The content of this document cannot be altered and duplicated without the permission of the copyright holder, MiCo BioMed Co., Ltd.

#### 1-6. Laboratory Biosafety

Non-propagative diagnostic laboratory work (e.g. sequencing, NAAT) should be conducted at facilities and procedures equivalent to BSL-2.

# 2. Safety Guideline

#### 2-1. Purpose of use

QD-P100 is an instrument for performing real-time polymerase chain reaction (Real-time PCR) that can rapidly and accurately amplify target nucleic acid for disease diagnosis.

This instrument can be used in the area of in vitro diagnosis, and should be used by a trained personnel with professional skills. This product is for In Vitro Diagnostic device.

#### 2-2. Principles of operation

This product is the Instrument to amplify nucleic acids (DNAand/orRNA) of specific genes in human cells by using the principle of Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR), enabling confirmation of the amplification and accumulation of genes real time. By using the complementary primer for specific target genes and the probe labeled with fluorescence dyes, the Instrument measures the fluorescence generated during PCR amplification, and then measures whether or not the target gene is present in samples and the amount of the initial template.

The value of fluorescence generated to amplify the genes with PCR is recorded in Photodiode. The fluorescent chromosomes mainly used are FAM, HEX, TEX, and CY5, and it is possible to measure them entirely or selectively by using the power LED light sources photodiode, and light filters.

#### 2-3. General Precautions

QD-P100 System must be used by a trained personnel with specialized skills related to genetic analysis. Please read this manual before operating the device. If the usage method and precautions in the manual is not followed, it may threaten the safety of the personnel using the device. Please read and follow the warning indicated in the sign.



**WARNING** – It may cause the risk of physical injury or death or damage to the device if the guideline or procedure is not followed.

**Waste** – Do not dispose of the product with general household waste. Local waste collection regulation for electronic and electric products must be followed.

#### 2-3-1. Warning and Prevention



QD-P100 System is an electronic and mechanical device. Since there is a risk of electric shock or physical injury, you must operate the device according to the user manual. The manufacturer is not held responsible for problems arising from not observing the safety precautions. Follow the safety precautions attached to the device.

- 1. Please comply with general safety requirements applied to the electronic device.
- 2. Do not access the internal part of the equipment while it is turned on.
- 3. Do not move the device while the PCR is under operation.
- 4. When cleaning the device, perform cleaning after turning off the power and unplugging the power cord.
- 5. Do not use the device near water.
- 6. Prep reagent, solvent, etc. can affect the PCR results.
- 7. Purified or concentrated nucleic acid (DNA/RNA) can affect the PCR results.
- 8. Do not touch the switch, power cable or device with wet hands.
- 9. Do not randomly dismantle or remodel the device. It may cause fire, electric shock, and breakdown, and you will not be able to receive after service.
- 10. Only a designated engineer can provide repair and services.
- 11. Do not overload the power outlet. It may cause fire or electric shock.
- 12. Please install the device on a clean and level surface. Corrosive gas or high density magnetic location can damage the device. Do not install on an unstable or sloped location. If the device is wet, immediately unplug the power cable.
- 13. Do not use the device for purposes other than gene amplification or real-time quantitative analysis. It may cause malfunction of the product or injury.
- 14. Do not use components other than the ones provided by the manufacturer. It may cause the malfunction or breakdown of the product.
- 15. In case of any one of the following conditions, unplug the power cable and make an inquiry to the manufacturer.
  - ▶ If power cord or plug is damaged
  - ▶ If the device is exposed to water or liquid
- 16. Do not place items on the device or sit on it.
- 17. This equipment has been designed according to CISPR11, Class A. In a domestic environment, it may receive interference, and in such a case, you may be required to take measures for alleviating the interference.
- 18. Evaluation on the electromagnetic environment should be conducted prior to the operation of the device.
- 19. Do not use this device near sources of powerful electromagnetic radiation (e.g. Unshield intentional RF sources). These may interfere with normal operation.

• In case of an emergency, immediately unplug the power cable.



#### Or turn off the power switch.



# WARNING-Chemical Safety

Refer to MSDS before handling chemical substances, and comply with all related precautions. The waste generated while using the device may cause injury, disease or death. Refer to the MSDS and local regulations for handling, storing, and disposal of wastes.

# WARNING – Chemical Waste Disposal

Please wear appropriate protective gear such as goggles, garment, gloves, etc. when disposing reagents and chips. You must wear safety gear when handling toxic substance and substance which cause infection. Store, transport and dipose the wastes according to all local, regional or national regulations.



#### 2-3-2. Shipping and Transport

QD-P100 System is packaged in a hard case, and is shipped in a box.

The hard case includes QD-P100 System and its components. The product componentss, specification, PCR installation, and usage method are explained in detail later on. Even when warranty period is valid, abnormality that has occurred due to inappropriate packaging and transport is excluded from the warranty.

#### 1. Condition during transport and storage

Allowable temperature	Room temperature
Relative humidity	20% to 90% (without condensation)

#### 2. Shipping method

Use the hard case included as a component when moving or transporting the device. The device must be transported in a hard case.



3) Close the hard case.



2) Place the device in the hard case.



4) Lock the case.



#### 5) Transport while carrying it with a hand.



Please proceed in reverse order when unpacking.

#### 2-3-3. Operating Environment and Installation

If precautions are not followed when installing the device, it may cause risk. Please follow the guideline.

- 1. This device is a precise optical device. Please install the device away from direct sunlight and strong light.
- 2. Check the power condition and use the device. The product can use both 220V/110V. For stable use of the product, use of automatic voltage regulator (AVR) or UPS (Uninterrupted Power Supply with AVR function is recommended.
- 3. Use grounded power supply. If the device is not grounded, you can incur physical injury by lightning, and cannot use the product stably.
- 4. Do not use the power plug when it is loose. The plug becomes damaged due to overheating and may cause fire or electric shock.
- 5. Wipe dust off the power plug, and plug it firmly so it does not shake. If the connection is unstable, it becomes the cause of fire.
- 6. Do not use multiple devices on a power outlet at the same time. Abnormally generated heating of the power outlet due to overload becomes the cause of fire.
- 7. When installing the product, install the system body at least over 10 cm away from the wall and over 20 cm away from other items. If the product is installed close to the wall, it becomes

the cause of product breakdown.

- 8. Do not place items that can interfere with the operation around the product. This may interfere with the operation of the product, and abnormality may occur when operating the door.
- 9. Install the device away from a place with a lot of dust. It becomes the cause of malfunction or breakdown of the product.
- 10. Install away from heating devices such as electric heating appliance. It becomes the cause of fire.
- 11. Install the device away from a place where water splashes or a place with much moisture. It becomes the cause of electric shock, fire, and breakdown.
- 12. Do not install the device in a place where flammable or corrosive gas is generated. In case of gas leakage, do not operate the power plug of the device but open the window for ventilation. Sparks may fly and cause an explosion and fire.
- 13. Do not randomly dismantle or remodel the device. It may cause fire, electric shock, and breakdown, and you will not be able to receive after service.

### CLASS 1 LED PRODUCT

< QD-P100 System is an LED Grade Class 1 product. >

CAUTION - CLASS 2M LED RADIATION WHEN OPEN DO NOT STARE INTO THE BEAM OR VIEW DIRECTLY WITH OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS

< Class 2M LED module is used inside QD-P100 System. >

#### 1. Conditions

- Operating temperature: 15 ~ 32°C
- Operating humidity: 20 ~ 80 %
- Max. 80% without condensation (under 32°C conditions)
- Min. 20% (under 15 ~ 32°C conditions)

#### 2. LED Module

- Please refer to page 15 for product specification.
- Frequency: LED is turned on about every 4 seconds per cycle. It does not light up if the device is not operating.

# 

The computer should have a communication port for USB data transfer. Do not install a memory stick when the device is operating. A problem may occur in the communication between the device and the computer.

#### 2-3-4. Consumable

A disposable consumable is required for the operation of the device. Labchip is produced only for the QD-P100. Do not use the chip more than 2 times. It may bring about unreliable results.

Disposable	Description
	<b>QD-P100 Labchip</b> Pour a set amount of reagent per channel in the Labchip and close the chip case.

#### 2-3-5. Warning and Caution for Use and Management

The QD-P100 System does not require regular cleaning.

- 1. Warning and Caution for Use and Management
- Do not use the device for purposes other than gene amplification or real-Otime quantitative analysis. It may cause malfunction of the product or injury.
- Manage the LabChip part so that it is not stained with foreign substances. It may cause product breakdown or injury, and accurate experiment data cannot be obtained.
- Do not use the device while placing paper or bottom board made out of synthetic resin underneath the device. It may cause fire.
- Do not cover the product with paper, vinyl, etc. when the device is in operation. It becomes the cause of fire and breakdown of the device.
- When using the device in connection to a computer, set "Turn off monitor", "Turn off hard disk", "System standby mode", and "System hibernate mode" in power option as "Not used."
- If the QD-P100 is operated in connection to a computer, since it communicates a large amount of data in real-time, an error may occur during operation if the monitor or hard disk is turned off.
- If the device malfunctions, an error indication lamp lights up and an error code is displayed on the LCD screen. If an error occurs, do not operate the device by force and ask the head office for assistance.
- If the product is randomly dismantled, the user can be exposed to the LED, and if the user's eyes are exposed to it, an injury may be incurred.

- Since high temperature conditions are maintained inside this product, the user can be burned when exposed. Do not touch the thermal block. You must be careful since the thermal block is hot when the device is operating.
- Do not recharge the coin battery. If the battery is replaced in a wrong manner, there is a risk of an explosion.

# 

The power cable must be unplugged when cleaning the device.



Do not pour liquid into the chip door.

#### Transport, Storage and Preservation Method

	Under operation	In storage	In transport
Temperature (°C)	15 ~ 32	Room temperature (RT)	Room temperature (RT)
Relative humidity (%)	20 ~ 80	20 ~ 90	20 ~ 90
Pressure (kPa)	70 ~ 100	70 ~ 100	70 ~ 100

- Store the device at a location with no moisture.
- Do not store at a location adversely affecting the device with pressure, temperature, humidity, ventilation, dust, and air containing salt, etc.
- Be careful of safety conditions such as slope, vibration, shock, etc. (including when driving a car)
- Regular inspection must be performed on the device and its components.
- When re-using the device that has not been used for a while, make sure the device is clean and check whether it works safely before use.

#### 2-3-6. Limitation

The QD-P100 is optimized to use with Veri-Q PCR 316 reagent kit made by Mico BioMed and it couldn't guaranteed performance excepting the system.

# 3. Product Component and Specification

#### 3-1. Product Composition and Characteristic

The warranty period of the product is 1 year from the date of purchase. However, in case of a breakdown due to the user's negligence, free warranty is not available. If a breakdown occurs after the warranty period, a fee will be charged for the repair. Before installing the product, check whether all items in the following product composition is included in the product package.

#### 3-1-1. Product Composition



Component	Quantity	Check (O,X)
QD-P100 Instrument	1	
Real-time PCR QD-P100		
- software	1	
- Guides		
- Drivers		
AC Adapter		
- Model designation : SNP-A127-M		
- Manufacturer : SKYNET ELECTRONIC CO LTD,	1	
- Input : 100-250V, 3-1,5 A, 50 / 60 Hz		
- Output : 12 V dc, 9 A		
Main power cable (EU)	1	
USB cable A to B	1	
Labchip case	1	
Labchip	1	
Rubber	1	

Optional Components		
Chip cradle	1	
SW CD	1	

Common name	Gene amplification device
Brand name	Veri-Q PCR 316
Model name	QD-P100
Software	QD-P100 RTPCR_2.00 Ver
Temperature range	40 ~ 120 ℃
Temperature accuracy	±0.3°C at 90°Csetting condition
Temperature uniformity	$\pm 0.3$ °C within 30 seconds at 90 °C setting
Input rating	12 V dc
Input current	9A
Detection	Photo diode
Ports	USB
Weight	4.7Kg
Dimension	274x170x206mm
	FAM – 483±18nm
Fluorescence Wavelength	HEX – 534±12.5nm
(Excitation)	Cy5 – 628±19nm
	Texas Red – 586±13nm
	FAM – 535±24nm
Fluorescence Wavelength	HEX – 572±16.5nm
(Emission)	Cy5 – 692±23.5nm
	Texas Red – 623±15nm
Fluorescence type	FAM, HEX, Cy5, Texas Red,
Battery	Coin battery (CR2032)

#### 3-1-3. Device Structure and Name

1. Front View



#### 2. Top View



3. Rear View



#### 4. Side View





#### 3-1-4. How to Install Product

1. Device Connection

	<ol> <li>1) Open the hard case.</li> <li>2) Check whether nothing is wrong with the components and the device.</li> </ol>
	3) Connect the adapter to the power port.
	4) Connect the AC inlet of the AC adapter to the main power cable.
666 2	5) Connect to the power outlet.



6) Install QDInstallManager.exe

#### 2. Computer Connection

In the back of QD-P100 system, there is a power connection port, and a data transmission cable connection (USB port) for sending and receiving data to and from the computer. Follow the following procedure to install the QD-P100 system and connect it to the computer.



3. Precautions upon Installation

Please install the product according to the manual. If the location of the product installation is wrong, the device can be damaged.

- Install the device away from direct sunlight.
- Unplug the cable and turn off the power before installation. It may damage the computer or the device.
- Check if the USB is properly connected. If the connection is unstable, an error may occur upon data transmission.
- Please be careful to prevent damage of the device due to static.

- Installation Location

The backside should be installed more than 10cm away from the wall.

The side of the device should be installed more than 20cm away from the wall or other items.



#### 4. Product Installation

The QD-P100 System is a Stand alone device that can be operated without a computer. The product's operating program should be installed on the computer in order to operate QD-P100 system in connection to a computer. Please refer to this chapter if you are installing for the first time or if you need to inevitably reinstall the program on the computer installed upon purchasing the product. For re-installation, you must follow the order by referring to this chapter.

You must first prepare a desktop or laptop in order to use the QD-P100 system in connection to the computer. The recommended requirement for the computer suitable for using the QD-P100 system is as follows. For other inquiries, please contact the customer support center of MiCo BioMed. If the computer does not satisfy the recommended requirement, the QD-P100 system will not work properly or a problem may arise when the device is operated.

#### **Recommended Requirement of Computer**

Intel Dual Core E2160 (1.8GHz) or higher
 Window 7 for Korean or English Version
 2.0GB RAM or higher
 Screen resolution: 1920 \* 1280 or higher
 USB 2.0 high speed port
 20GB hard disk drive minimum
 Microsoft Excel, Word (Option)

For matters regarding the computer and installation of OS not directly related to QD-P100, please make an inquiry to the computer dealer or computer after service support center.

#### 3.2 How to Use

#### 3-2-1. Device Operation and Experiment Preparation

If the device and the computer are installed and connected according to the product installation method, check the normal operation of the device and start the experiment.

#### 3-2-2. Power Supply and Self Test Method

1. Connect the adapter cable to the power connector at the back side of the QD-P100 body. (\*\*Caution: Based on the direction of viewing the power connector, the direction of the arrow of the adapter cable should face upwards. If the adapter cable is inserted in the opposite direction, even if it does not fit, it can be forced in with strong force, and in this case, the electronic circuit can be critically damaged.)



2. If you connect the adapter cable and turn on the device, it boots up and initializes. The LCD screen displays the company logo until initialization is completed, and a blue light will light up on Run LED (status LED). If the initialization is finished, it switches over to the main menu screen, and a green light turns on. The green light coming on means the device is working properly.





#### 3-2-3. Description of Program Screen

The main screen is displayed several minutes after the device is connected to the power.



• Select the light source of the sample to be measured.

#### Light Source FAM HEX TEX CY5 Set-up 3 30 4 -Mode Step Step **RT Step** 55°C 00:30 Pre-denaturation 55°C D 00:30 Protocol Block 1 90°C 🖸 00:15 Data list Block 2 65°C 00:15 **RUN START** Out ->

■ Select a number of protocol steps.



• Set the number of cycles of the sample to be measured.



• Set the temperature and time of the sample to be measured.

Set-up	Light Source	FAM HEX TEX CYS
	Mode	3 Step 4 Step <b>30</b>
View		RT Step
Data list	Protocol	Block 1 90°C D 00:15 D
Out	<b>1</b>	Block 2 65°C 0 00:15 C

- Light Source FAM HEX TEX CY5 Set-up 3 4 30 Mode Stop Step Cecle View **RT** Step 55℃ 00:30 Pre-denaturation 55°C 00:30 Protocol Block 1 00:15 90°C Data list 00:15 Block 2 65°C 20 **RUN START** Out-
- The door of the device can be opened and closed by pressing Chip In/Out button.

■ The device can be operated by pressing RUN START button.



Progress can be checked in the View tab while PCR is in progress.





• When PCR is finished, a pop-up window informing that the PCR is finished pops up.



• The completed PCR data is saved inside, and the saved data can be checked immediately by printing it through the printer built into the device.



#### **3-3 Preparation for Experiment**

For sample preparation, see the instructions for use of Veri-Q PCR 316 reagent kit made by Mico BioMed

#### 3-3-1. Sample Insertion

Insert the prepared sample into the chip.

#### 3-3-2. Preparation of LabChip Case and Rubber Cover

Prepare the chip case and rubber cover as shown in the photo below.





#### 3-3-3. LabChip Case Mounting

As shown in the photo below, the left part is the bottom board and the right part is the part that will cover the left part. Place the rubber cover on the right part to fit the shape, and place the chip on the left part.



Cover the right part with the left part and pull the fixing clip to either side as shown in the photo below.



#### 3-3-4. LabChip Insertion

Chip door will automatically open once the device is turned on. When inserting the chip case, the circled part in the following photo must head toward the device.



Gently push and insert it until a "click" sound is heard. (Caution – While the chip case is being completely inserted, do not forcibly push the chip case.)

#### 3-3-5. LabChip Removal

Once the experiment is finished, the chip door will automatically open. Press the chip in the direction of insertion until a "click" sound is heard, and then, take out the chip case and remove the rubber cover and the chip.

**\*** Do not re-use the Labchip since it is disposable.

## 4. How to Install and Use the Operating Program

- 4-1. Execution of Distribution CD and Installation of Operating Program
- 4-1-1. Execution of Distribution CD



<Figure 1> QD-P100 Distribution Program Folder and Execution File

- 1. If QD-P100 Install Manager distribution CD is inserted into the computer, you can check the folders and files as shown in <Figure 1>.
- 2. Run the execution file, "QD-P100 Install manager.exe" file.



<Figure 2> QD-P100 Install Manager Program Execution Screen

#### 4-1-2. CP210x Driver Install(32bit, 64bit)



<Figure 3> CP210x Driver Install Button

1. Select "CP210x 32Bit Driver Install", or "CP210x 64Bit Driver Install" button as shown in <Figure 3>.

	Welcome to the CP210x USB to UART Bridge Driver Installer This wizard will help you install the drivers for your CP210x USB to UART Bridge device.
10	To continue, click Next.

2. Select "Next" button as shown in <Figure 4>.

<sup>&</sup>lt;Figure 4> CP210x 64Bit Driver Install Execution Screen-1

#### Veri-Q PCR 316 QD-P100 User Manual



<Figure 5> CP210x 64Bit Driver Install Execution Screen-2

3. Select "I accept this agreement" and then "Next" button as shown in <Figure 5>.

The drivers are now installing			2XI
Please wait while the d	irivers install. Th	B) s may take some time t	o complete.
		Back Next >	Cancel

<Figure 6> CP210x 64Bit Driver Install Execution Screen-3

4. The driver is installed as shown in <Figure 6>.

CP210x USB to UART Bridge Dr	iver Installer							
	Completing the Installation of the CP210x USB to UART Bridge Driver							
	The drivers were successfully installed on this computer.							
	You can now connect your devi came with instructions, please re	ce to this computer. If your device ad them first.						
	Driver Name	Status						
	V Silicon Laboratories (sila	Ready to use						
	< <u>Back</u> Finish Cancel							

<Figure 7> CP210x 64Bit Driver Install Execution Screen-4

5. Select "Finish" button as shown in <Figure 7>.

#### 4-1-3. QD-P100 Software Install



<Figure 8> QD-P100 Software Install Execution Screen-1

1. Select "QD-P100 Software Install" button as shown in <Figure 8>.



<Figure 9> QD-P100 Software Install Execution Screen-2

2. Select "Next" button as shown in <Figure 9>.

QD-P100 rtPCR - InstallShield Wizard	J
Ready to Install the Program The wizard is ready to begin installation.	
Click Install to begin the installation. If you want to review or change any of your installation settings, click Back. Click Cancel to	
exit ure wizaru.	
InstallShield	
< Dack Install Cancel	

<Figure 10> QD-P100 Software Install Execution Screen-3

3. Select "Install" button as shown in <Figure 10>.

InstallShield Wizard Complete The InstallShield Wizard has successfully installed QD-P100 rtPCR. Click Finish to exit the wizard.
< Back Finish Cancel

<Figure 11> QD-P100 Software Install Execution Screen-4

4. Select "Finish" button and finish installation as shown in <Figure 11>.

#### 4-1-4. Manual View



<Figure 12> Manual View Execution

1. If "Manual View" button is selected as shown in <Figure 12>, you can check the Manual file in PDF format.

#### 4-1-5. DaViewIndy(PDF Viewer)



<Figure 13> DaViewIndy Installation

1. If "DaviewIndy" button is selected as shown in <Figure 13>, you can install PDF Viewer program.

# 4-2. How to Use the Operating Program

#### 4-2-1. Working Wizard

In the working wizard, you can view the list of settings previously experimented and the list of result files.



<Figure 1> QD-P100 rtPCR Working Wizard

1. Connection Status

Generally, you should connect the communication cable between RTPCR device and PC, and run the program while the power is turned "On."

#### If properly connected:

If properly connected, you can view only the screen of <Figure 1>.

#### If not properly connected:

If improperly connected, you can view a pop-up window as shown in <Figure 2>.



<Figure 2> Pop-up for improper connection

This program turns off if "Yes" is pressed. If "Retry" is pressed, it attempts to connect once again. If "Ignore" button is pressed, the screen of the program is displayed, but the connection with the device is ignored.

#### 2. Top Toolbar Buttons

- : The button for importing executed files.
  - : The button for showing Working Wizard screen.
- 1900 : The button for showing Run Setup screen.
- : The button for showing the list of experiments done on the QD-P100 device.

Device	Data L	ist			×
			Device Data List		
no. I	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-1522:16:52	User Protocol	
no.2	FAM	45cydes	2016-07-15 20:16:58	User Protocol	
no.3	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-15 11:54:18	RT Reference.ptd	
no.4	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-15 11:07:10	RT Reference.ptd	
no.5	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-14 19:17:11	RT Reference.ptd	
no.6	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-14 18:40:37	RT Reference.ptd	
no.7	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-14 17:51:40	RT Reference.ptd	
no.8	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-14 17:11:30	RT Reference.ptd	
no.9	FAM	45cydes	2016-07-14 16:31:43	RT Reference.ptd	
no. 10	FAM	45cycles	2016-07-13 23:14:15	RT Reference.ptd	
	Г				1
		Create UFP5	Print Results	Cancel	
					-

<Figure 3> Pop-up window of list of experiments done on the QD-P100 device

 $\sim$  Onceis clicked, a pop-up window appears as shown above.

Create UFP5: Converts the working information of the currently selected list into ufp5 file and displays it on the window.

Print Results: It can print the CT results of the working information of the currently selected list.



4. Run Setup Button

The button for showing Run Setup screen as bown in .

#### 4-2-2. PCR Protocol Setting



<Figure 4> QD-P100 rtPCR Protocol Setting Screen

#### 1. Default Protocol

QD-P100 basically provides 6 Protocols. You can select and use a desired Protocol out of Protocol Type as shown in <Figure 4>.

Default Pr	atocal
	Protocol List
mo.1	Reference
no.2	RT Reference
no.3	MaRPV-QH
no.4	MTB-Q5
no.5	20-05
no.6	1091-Q5
	OK Cancel

<Figure 5> Default Protocol List Pop-up Window

#### 2. Recent Protocol

It shows the pop-up window of the list of Protocols used in recent experiments, and you can select and use the desired Protocol.



<Figure 6> Recent Protocol List Pop-up Window

#### 3. Import Protocol

You can import and use the Protocol files saved in the PC. The extension of the Protocol file is .ptcl.

구성 후 시 불다					22.4	
2 2121	이프 -	수정한 날짜	+2	.81.7		
2299.5	Scycleatd	2016-05-10 10-20-	FT0.31%	213		
21 최근 위치	30,2,ptc1	2016-05-12 #25-	FTCL IF S	213		
關 바람 하면	20gdeptci	2010-01-01 8.8.	PTCL IPS	213		
	114 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	2010-05-20 8.8	PTCL IPS	218		
Gi 60x66	1 10,2 pt i	2010-09-03 8.8	P10.315	213		
3 문서	30cycle grait	2010-08-00 0.8	P10, 315	2/3		
😸 비디오	40qyde.pts1	2018-08-07 2-8	PTC), 315	2/3		- 1
표 사원	111ged	2016-08-01 企平	P10, 파일	2/3		
2 89	1515.ptd	2010-08-07 2/4	PIO, 415	2/3		
	Poostoome pathogen 80.ptd	2010-08-05 2.4	FIG. 415	2/3		
-6 A 14	Poolbome pethogen Detection 68,1.ptd	2016-06-00 요청	FIG. 74%	2/3		
	Reference and	2015-04-01 오푸	FTO, 74%	20		
<b>序</b> 58년	FT Reference ptd	2015-03-30 全市	FIG. 38	202		
E 59 F123 (0)	KT Beference22.ptd	2215-06-00 요휴	FIG. 348	202		
EB FILS (0) ×	C the pad	2016-06-09 요전	FIG. 3(8)	202		
222	14 PC 1			· Apple 1	ptrá	

<Figure 7> Pop-up Window for Importing Protocol Files

#### 4. Create / Edit Protocol



<Figure 8> Edit Protocol Pop-up Window

You can set temperature by section, holding time, and the number of other working cycle. The temperature can be set within the range from 45 to  $100^{\circ}$ C. Time can be freely entered, and the number of Cycle can be set within the range from 5 to 100 Cycle.

	Minimum value	Maximum value
Temperature	45	100
Cycle	5	100
Time	1 second	18 hours

#### 5. Save Protocol File

If you press "OK" button in the edit / create pop-up window after finishing all setting on the Protocol, a pop-up window as shown in <Figure 9> appears. If you press "yes," the set protocol can be saved as a file.

Do you want to	o save the changes t	to Reference.ptcl?
Yes	NO	Cancel

<Figure 9> Pop-up window asking whether or not to save Protocol

#### 4.3. PCR Chip Setting

QD-P100 is supporting 4 types of fluorescence. In the Chip Setting, you can set the desired fluorescence, target name, sample name, and graph color, etc. of each channel .



<Figure 10> QD-P100 rtPCR Chip Setting Screen

#### 4-3-1. Default Chip

QD-P100 basically provides 3 Chip Settings. (FAM, CY5 and FAM-CY5) You can select and use the desired Chip Setup as shown in <Figure 11>.

Default Ch	ip			x
		Chip Infor	mation List	
10.1	Malifi QH			
no.2	HTTB-QS			
no.3	ZIK-QS			
no.4	p00%-Q5			
		ок	Cancel	

<Figure 11> Default Chip List Pop-up Window

#### 4-3-2. Recent Chip

You can use the Chip Setting used in a recent experiment. You can select and use the desired Chip Setup as shown in <Figure 12>.

	Chip Informat	ion List
no.1	Reference_FAM_Cy5	2016-06-24 13:19:39
no.2	222	2016-06-24 13:19:36
no.3	Reference_FAM_Cy5	2016-06-24 13: 19: 33
no.4	Reference_FAM	2016-06-24 13: 19:29
no.5	Reference_FAM_Cy5	2016-06-24 13: 19:24
no.6	Reference_Cy5	2016-06-24 13:18:42
no.7	222	2016-06-24 10:47:55
no.8	Reference_FAM_Cy5	2016-06-24 10:47:42
no.9	Reference_Cy5	2016-06-24 10:47:39
no. 10	Reference_FAM	2016-06-16 14:34:49

<Figure 12> Recent Chip List Pop-up Window

#### 4-3-3. Import Protocol

You can import and use the Chip Setting file saved in a PC. The extension of Chip Setting file is .cs16.

~성 * 새 풀다					H- 3 0
2 @2821	N# 1	수정한 날파	유럽	크기	
2250 8	ack and	2016-04-28 8-20-	C516 2-2	1869	
일] 최근 위치	4chrosto	2016-05-16 9.8	C516 70 %	2005	
關 바람 좌단	4ck.2.cst6	2016-06-03 2.#_	C516 3-92	2048	
	160510.es16	2016-05-10 9.8	C516 2(9)	2048	
등 라이브라리	0 05.016	2016-04-25 9.8	C518 70%	1305	
D #4	eee.cs56	2016-04-21 9.#	C516 3-9	2048	
8 492	fam ctill	2016-06-30 9.8	C516 3/9	1203	
重 사진	hen.cs16	2018-08-18 요전	C516 77%	1305	
2.84	heitek.cs56	2016-05-04 오후	C516 319	1948	
	newtest.cs16	2016-04-21 요전	CS16 3/S	200	
6 X D R -	helerence_FAM_ck.cs10	2018-05-25 皇夏.	C518 7P T	1505	
	Beference, FAM, Cy5.ct06	2016-08-17 오車	C516 319	1948	
투 친구의	Reference_FAM_yellow.cs16	2016-03-25 9.8	C516 IP/8	1202	
🛃 문철 디스크 (C)	WiLcs16	2016-05-25 皇夏.	C518 R B	1303	
(D) 투합 디스프 (D) ~	tex.cs16	2016-04-25 9.年	CS16 3-9	1348	
THE C	A MARKED			- tatétaté	

<Figure 13> Pop-up window for importing Chip Setting file

#### 4-3-4. Edit / Create Protocol

The user can edit and create Chip Setting and use it as shown in <Figure 14>.

Edit Orip Edit Neeu Semple Terputa	Somple Hame Each	4 1							$\subset$	ок Са	× nool
FAIL .	Segent Report			2	3	4			7	8	1
· · ·	011		CH 1	CH 2	CH 3	CH 4	CH 5	CH6	CH7	CH8	
6	012		112	Unk	U78	Litrik	Lite	Unk	Unk	Unk	
	014		ISAM.	17AM	PAH	FAN	FAN	FAM	FAM	PAM	
2	015		CH9	CH 10	0111	CH 12	CH 13	CH 14	CH 15	CH 16	
	0.0		Lak	Urk	UVA	LVA	Live	Link	Unk	Lak	
	010		FAM	FAM	FAM	FAN	FAN	FAM	FAM	FAM	
	0112 0112 0112 0114 0114 0115 0115 0115 0115										1

<Figure 14> QD-P100 rtPCR Edit Chip Pop-up Screen

#### 1. Chip Setting View

This is a table showing the information on customized fluorescence, target name, etc. Furthermore, you can select the channel for applying chip setting by dragging or using a grey button as shown in <Figure 15> before setting the chip. In addition, if you select with the mouse while pressing "Ctrl" key, multiple selection can be made.

	)(	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
	1	CH 1	CH 2	CH 3	CH 4	CH 5	СН 6	СН 7	СНВ
A	10	Pos	Ukn	Ukn			Ukn	Ukn	Ukn
		FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM
	1	СН 9	CH 10	CH 11	CH 12	CH 13	CH 14	CH 15	CH 16
в	Ш		Ukn	Ukn			Ukn	Ukn	Ukn
	1	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM	FAM
	9.04								

<Figure 15> Condition of selecting multiple channels in Chip View

#### 2. Sample Targets

You can set sample target type, name, and concentration regarding channels.





If you select a Combo box, you can select one of the various type of sample target type.

Sample Targets	
CH	
Ukn	_
FAM	2
Im target name	4
LC	~

<Figure 17> Edit Box for entering target name

If the desired target name is entered and enter key is pressed or check button is pressed, it sets the value as entered.

#### 3. Sample Name

The user can set the sample name for each channel. "Sample Name All" can set all sample name value of the selected channel, and "Sample Name Each" can set the sample name for each channel. In addition, you can save or import the set sample name as a file.

#### 4. Select Fluorescence & Color

The user can select up to 4 desired fluorophores, and can set the graph color for every channel.

#### - Select Fluorescence

Channel	Flaorophore	Select
1		্ৰ ব
	STOR	
2	HEX	
	Cal Gold 540	
	Cal Grange 560	
	VIC	
3	Tu san Red	
	Cal Red 610	
	RED	
	Tex 615	
4	Eyő	
	Quasar 670	

<Figure 18> Pop-up window for selecting Fluorescence Type

If "Select Fluor" button is pressed, a pop-up window appears as shown in <Figure 18>. You can select up to 4 fluorophores, and can select only one of the identical fluorescence type.

#### - Select Color Style



<Figure 19> Pop-up window for selecting graph color of every fluorescence type

If "Color Style" button is pressed, a pop-up window appears as shown in <Figure 19>. You can set the graph color by channel according to each fluorescence type "Default" button sets the basic color of each fluorescence type. "Random" button sets the color of each channel as a random color. "Last" button sets the graph color used in the most recent experiment.

#### 5. Chip Setting Save

If "OK" button in <Figure 14> is pressed after finishing all settings on the chip, a pop-up window appears as shown in <Figure 20>. If "yes" is pressed, the set chip setting can be saved as a file.

Do you want t	o save the changes t	to the Chip file?
Yes	NO	Cancel

<Figure 20> Pop-up window asking whether or not to save Chip Setting file

#### 4.4. Operation

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	0++   EF	Ruel	Run Selap X			_ D X
¶ur•• Protocol	Orip In Orip Out			$\bigcirc$	Start Run	
Chip		Instrument	QD P1M, 16CH	Notes		
Start Run		fan file Name		_		
		Fronscol	fleforense gitt	-		
	Run Information	Chip	Reserved_ALL_ECOLORS.cm	-		
		Scan Moda	FAM, HEX, Texas Red, Cyd	-		
				×		

<Figure 21> QD-P100 rtPCR Start Run Screen

#### 4-4-1. Run Information

<Figure 21> shows all setting values set by the user. QD-P100 is applying only 16 channels. In "Notes," the user can prepare the content the user want to make a memo of.

If "Start Run" button is pressed, a pop-up window appears as shown in <Figure 22>. If the result file is set in a desired location and then, the file name is set, and "Save" button is pressed, Run begins as shown in <Figure 23>.

C	분철 디스크 (C) +			+ iy #2	20210324	ρ
78 * 4 29					10 -	
31 하군 위치 ^	9# <sup>*</sup>	수정한 날짜	9.0	37		
關 사장 와면	instead	2015-08-04-0-18	고영 문어			
	ili total	2015-01-11 528	고민 문어			
GB 타이보려리	a .0C	2015-07-20 9-79	39.00			
3 준석	A Makabio	2015-12-20 9:0	구성 좋다			
🖬 비디요	Nanobiosyt	2016-04-15 9.8.	국일 좋다			
도 사진 비	A NA	2016-01-28 9.4	국일 뿐이			- 1
J 51	AL INVECTOR	2015-03-11 요전	파일 뿐더			
	all opency	2014-10-01 9:8	파일 물더			
+6 # 1#	PerfLogs	2009-07-14 9:#	구설 물다			
	III Program Riles	2016-07-11 史丰	국일 뿐이			
18 SAN	A Program Nes 0/861	2016-07-14 오렌	파일 뿐이			
응는 또한 디스크 (C)	A Flot Games	2016-07-00 9-10	파일 뿐더			
G 토랍디스크(D)	🖟 SiLabe	2015-04-02 요전	구일 좀더			
THE DISCOUT						
man de como la colom	s - 1-10					-
HIR BUILT TRUES	(-mibo)					
						_
중 물러 숨기기					월(S)	-

<Figure 22> Pop-up window for saving result file



<Figure 23> QD-P100 rtPCR Working Status Screen

#### 4-4-2. Working Status

#### 1. Chip Setup & Run Status

The setting on a chip can be modified even during an experiment. However, the type and quantity of fluorescence cannot be modified. If "Select Fluor" button is pressed, the graph of the relevant fluorescence can be hidden or shown. "Run Status" displays the current step, cycle, temperature, and remaining time. If "Stop" button is pressed, it stops the current experiment in progress.

#### 2. Chip View & Chart

The red box area (2) of <Figure 23> shows the information on a channel. If Chip view is selected, it hides or shows the graph of the selected channel. Furthermore, the graph of the channel where a mouse point is located grows bold, and even the information on the relevant channel grows bold.

#### 4-5. Data Analysis



<Figure 24> QD-P100 rtPCR Working Data Analysis Screen

#### 4-5-1. Quantification

A screen on experiment results is displayed as shown in "Run Status." You can check the CT values in the table on the lower right corner. If CT values cannot be found, it will be indicated as 0.00.

#### 1. Image Copy & Save

If you right-click the mouse in the graph area, a small menu screen appears as shown in <Figure 25>. If "Copy" is pressed, the current graph is copied, and if "Save Image As.." is pressed, the graph image is saved on the PC.



<Figure 25> Graph Copy and File Save

#### 2. Chart Option

If you right-click the mouse in the graph area and press "Chart Option," a pop-up window appears as shown in <Figure 26>. This is a function for adjusting the value of x-axis and y-axis of the graph. If you click the padlock button, input value will be activated, and thus you will be able to set the desired values.



<Figure 26> Pop-up window for setting x-axis and y-axis of graph

3. Baseline Option

If you right-click the mouse on the graph area and view the submenu of "Baseline," there are 3 functions. If "No Baseline Subtraction" is selected, an unfitted graph appears, and if "Baseline Subtracted Curve Fit" is selected, a fitted graph appears.



<Figure 27> Baseline Setting

And if "Options..." is selected, a pop-up window appears as shown in <Figure 28>. Since this pop-up box can set a single fluorescence, it can activate only one fluorescence button. "Reset" button is for resetting auto baseline with the setting values. In the "User Baseline" tab, the user can directly set the baseline. If "OK" button is pressed, the baseline set by the user is applied.

All Selected Rese Channels	.) (-	Begin 1	End 40
Auto Baseli	ne	✓ User Bas	eline
Chip	Fluor	Begin	End
CH02	FAM	7	10
CH03	FAM	7	10
CH04	FAM	7	10
	FAM		
CH11	FAM		
	FAM		
	FAM		
CH14	FAM		
CH15	FAM		
	FAM		

<Figure 28> Auto/User Baseline Setting Pop-up Window

4. Threshold line Option

If you right-click the mouse on the graph area and view the submenu of "Thresholdline," there are 2 functions. "Auto Detection" automatically searches the threshold line.



<Figure 29> Threshold line Setting

"Standard Sensitivity..." and "Option..." displays a pop-up window as shown in <Figure 30>.

Threshold Value: It shows the threshold value of the current fluorescent graph.

Start Cycle: It can measure the CT from after the desired cycle.

**Standard Sensitivity**: If the amplification factor of the graph is small, it can be adjusted to activate "CT Detect."

Visible: It can show or hide the threshold of the current fluorescence.

**Color**: It can modify the threshold color of the current fluorescence.



<Figure 30> Pop-up window for setting Standard sensitivity and Threshold line



<Figure 31> Screen for setting Threshold line in graph using mouse

And if you bring the mouse to the threshold line as shown in <Figure 31>, the mouse pointer image changes, and if you move the mouse up and down while holding the left button of the mouse, you can adjust the threshold line. At this time, even the CT value on the right side of the screen changes in real-time according to the movement.

#### 4-5-2. Quantification Data

In "Quantification Data" tab, you can view the information of each channel according to fluorescence type.

QD P100 HPCR					
@					
	0.	arcaș			
Quantification		Reads			
Quantification	Chip	Fluer S.Nanc	T.Nanc	S.Type	Ct
Data	0.01	FAR		Ukn	25.40
Burnhausel	040	Far		U&n	19.28
Protocol	0403	PUR .		Lân	10.18
	0.01	Fan		iden.	12-34
Run Information	0.60	CAPI .		ukr	0.00
	0.00	nin .		Ven	0.09
	0.67	FAM		URN	0.00
TV-CONTRACTOR	0108	ner l		URN	0.00
	0409	NOT CON		Ukh	0.00
	010			ush .	100
	0.01	nun .		100	0.00
	0413	1.10		184	0.00
	010	for a		100	0.00
	0715	141		uan	2.09
	OHA	Tar.		LBn .	0.00
	0.01	HEL		URn	0.00
	0.02	HES		Ukn	0.09
	0.60	HEL		LAn	0.00
	0.04	HEI		Ukn	0.00
	0.06	HER		URA	0.08
	0.05	HEL		uten	0.00
	0.07	161		ulen.	0.00
	0.08	HES		ulen	0.09
	0109	HEX		Ukn	12.66
	0+10	HEC		uán	29.01
	0111	HEX		Ukn	10.82
	0+12	HES		Ukn	19.00
	0113	HEE		Ukn	0.00
	0414	HEE		Uks	0.08
	0+15	HES		ulin	0.08
	0120	HEI		uler.	0.00
	0.01	the Act		(An	0.09
	0.00	ETAG FOR		uen	0.09

<Figure 32> QD-P100 rtPCR Quantification Data Screen

•	Results	
	Results	
	RFU Raw Data	
	RFU Offset Data	
	RFU Fitting Data	

<Figure 33> QD-P100 rtPCR Quantification Data Screen

If Combo box is selected, the select screen drops down as shown in <Figure 33>. **Results** : It can view CT, sample name, target name, and sample type information of all fluorescence. **RFU Raw Data** : It can view data prior to fitting. **RFU Offset Data** : It can view data using fitting curve. **RFU Fitting Data** : It can view fitting data.

#### 4-5-3. Protocol Information

In "Protocol" tab, you can view the information of the protocol which was experimented.



<Figure 34> QD-P100 rtPCR Protocol Screen

#### 4-5-4. Run Information

In this tab, you can view setting information used in an experiment.

😋 QD-P100 mPCR - 2, Ibabiptor, 4	color.wip3		_ a ×
File View Setting Tool			
E Loop File	eix Chip		
Quantification Quantification Data Relative Quantification	File Name	2. Multiplan, 4 colocalp5	Tens 00.27.00
Protocol		Intrunest	Notes
Run Information 4		QD.P100, 16CH	
		Protocol Foodhome pathogen Dataction Kitalityvia ptvl	
		Chip Reference_ALL_4COLOR5.co16	
Rus	Information .	Scan Wode	
		ren, n.o., innerien, cy	

<Figure 35> QD-P100 rtPCR Protocol Screen

### 5. Troubleshooting

#### 5.1. Error Message



#### 5-1-1. Identifying the cause of malfunction

General malfunctions can be determined with the color of "Error LED."



#### 5-1-2. User correctable malfunction

If "Error LED" lights up, restart the device and check whether "Error LED" is normal. If the same error occurs even after restarting, you can request service through the manufacturer or dealer.

#### 5-1-3. Malfunction requiring repair

For a problem the user cannot solve (repetition of Error LED), you can request the manufacturer or dealer to provide customer services.

#### 5-1-4. When the performance of in vitro device changes

You can request the manufacturer or dealer to provide equipment upgrade or customer services.

#### 5.2. Maintenance

#### 5-2-1. Cleaning

- 1. QD-P100 does not require periodic cleaning.
- If a user wants to clean the device, please follow this guideline.
- 2. Turn off QD-P100
- 3. Gently wipe the LCD surface with a soft cloth.
- 4. Carefully wipe the surface of QD-P100 with a soft cloth using one of the following cleaning solutions.
- Super sani-cloth
- 70% Isopropyl alcohol
- Cleanser diluted in water
- 5. Apply sufficient amount of cleaning product on a cloth before wiping the surface of QD-P100.
- 6. If the user wants to clean the inside of the device or a serious contamination has occurred, please make an inquiry to the manufacturer or dealer.

#### 5-2-2. Warning

1. Do not pour liquid onto the QD-P100 device.

- 2. Do not spray any cleaning solution directly onto the QD-P100 device.
- 3. Do not place water or liquid around the QD-P100 device.
- 4. Do not dismantle the device.
- 5. Do not clean the inside of the device.

#### 5-2-3. Maintenance

QD-P100 device does not require any maintenance.

If you need calibration, please make an inquiry to the manufacturer or dealer.

And If there is a change in the performance characteristics of QD-P100 device, please make an inquiry to the manufacturer or dealer.

# **6. Warranty Policy**

Unless there is a separate written agreement, our product is protected from visible or invisible defect, nonfulfillment of manufacturing and materials for a period of 1 year from the date of distribution. If any damage is found at device during shipment or before using, please contact the manufacturer or dealer.

If the user intervenes without the prior written consent of the supplier, this warranty becomes void. The purchaser is responsible for consumables. All repair work carried out according to the warranty can be charged unless covered particularly by the original warranty and carried out in a country or within a designated country. The purchaser should bear in mind that repair period may be extended if import restrictions applies to a component. Deviation of material color and finish that cannot be technically avoided shall not constitute a sufficient reason for a claim. All devices are individually inspected when shipped out from the factory.

Return of a defective product can be accepted after the supplier approves of the warranty claim. The device can only be approved in their original packaging. The device should be immediately returned upon discovery of its defect. Approval of a return does not automatically constitute an acceptance of a claim.

When a complaint is accepted, the responsibility of the supplier is limited to the repair or replacement of the product or related spare parts. In any case, the purchaser cannot suspend payment or to arbitrarily deduct the term for payment without the written consent of the supplier. Our decision on all problems related to a complaint shall be final. All replaced devices shall become the property of our company.

This warranty is added to the legal or other rights of the purchaser.

### 7. Return Policy

Our goal is to provide our customer with the device of the highest quality at the lowest possible cost. Because of this, we can only accept devices wrongly delivered due to our mistake. Please receive prior approval before returning a product. If it is deemed that you are eligible for returning the product, please make an inquiry to our company within 7 days after receiving the device. The returned device must be in a shipped condition so that refund can be received.

# 8. Classification of Symbols

The packaging, the identification plate of the device, and the manual may contain the following symbols or abbreviations.

Symbol	Explanation
IVD	For in-vitro diagnostic use
ī	Refer to user manual
	Electric & Electronic Equipment Waste
	Caution
	Caution - LED
	Manufacturer
SN	Serial number
REF	Catalog number
	Fragile ; handle with care

## 9. Disposal of Electrical & Electronic Equipment



The meaning of the symbol on the product, its accessory or packaging indicates that this product must not be treated as a household waste. Dispose this equipment at the applicable collection point so that electrical and electronic equipment waste can be recycled. By guaranteeing the proper disposal of this product, it will be helpful in preventing potential hazard to the environment and human health that can arise due to inappropriate waste from this product. The recycling of materials will be helpful in preserving natural resources. Therefore, please do not dispose of old electrical and electronic equipment with household waste. For further details on the recycling of this product, please make an inquiry to the local city office, household waste processing service or the store where the product was purchased.

# 10. EMC & Safety Test Results

The system satisfies the EU safety test and EMC test requirements (IEC 61010-1:2010, EN 61326-1:2013). This equipment complies with EN 61326-1:2013, EN 61326-2-6:2006 Class A requirements and the emission of used energy is low and not likely to cause interference to nearby electronic equipment. This device was tested for immunity to electrostatic discharge at the test level 2kV, 4kV, and 8kV. The equipment was tested for immunity to radio frequency interference at the frequency of 80 MHz to 1.0 GHz and test level 3V/m.

The equipment was tested for immunity to radio frequency interference at the frequency of 1.4 GHz to 2.0 GHz and test level 3V/m.

The equipment was tested for immunity to radio frequency interference at the frequency of 2.0GHz to 2.7GHz and test level 1V/m.

This equipment complies with IEC 61010-1("Safety requirements on electrical equipment for measurement, control and laboratory use; General requirement"), and was in perfect safety conditions upon leaving the factory. The user is responsible for the installation, use, and maintenance of QD-P100.

# **11. Purchase of Reagents and Consumables**

#### 11-1. Consumables

LabChip must use only QD-P100 product manufactured by MiCoBioMed. Please check the homepage for purchase detail information (http://micobiomed.com/)

#### 11-2. Reagents

Only PCR Kits optimized for QD-P100 equipment manufactured by MiCoBioMed must be used. Please check the homepage for purchase detail information (http://micobiomed.com/)

Date of Preparation: Feb. 2020

# 12. Maintenance Checklist

#### Equipment Checklist (QD-P100)

#### 1. Daily Checklist

Checklist	Pass	Fail
The equipment is in the designated location.		
No foreign objects or leaks can be found around the equipment.		
The device is not exposed to direct sunlight.		
There are no installations that can cause dust, heat, and fluid inflow into the equipment.		
The power cord and adapter connector are plugged securely.		
The chip case door is closed.		
There is no object on the equipment that can cause LCD damage.		

\* For any failed items, contact the equipment manager.

#### 2. Monthly Checklist

Checklist	Pass	Fail
Normal operation has been checked by turning on the power switch with the power cable plugged in.		
The network connection status has been checked by connecting the USB cable to the laptop and rebooting the equipment.		
The RUN LED lights up in green.		
The operation status has been checked by pressing the CHIP IN/OUT button.		

\* For any failed items, contact the manufacturer.

#### 3. Quarterly Checklist

Checklist	Pass	Fail
The weekly checklist has been completed.		
The operation status has been checked by pressing the RUN START button after inserting a blank chip.		
The data imported from the laptop after the PRE RUN are complete.		

\* For any failed items, contact the manufacturer.

#### 4. Annual Checklist

Checklist	Pass	Fail
The quarterly checklist has been completed.		

\* For any failed items, contact the manufacturer.



# MEMO



# **User Manual**

Apr. 2020



# MiCo BioMed Co., Ltd.

3<sup>rd</sup> and 4<sup>th</sup> Floor , 54 Changeop-ro, Sujeong-gu, Seongnam-si, Gyeonggi-do, Korea, 13449 TEL: +82-70-5227-6000 FAX: +82-70-5227-6001~2